
SOLIHULL METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MONDAY 21 DECEMBER 2020 at 4pm. 

 
 

ARRANGEMENTS FOR PUBLIC ACCESS TO REMOTE MEETINGS 
 

During the Covid 19 pandemic virtual meetings are taking place. 
 
PLEASE NOTE that any member of the press and public may listen to proceedings at 
this virtual meeting via a weblink which will be publicised on the Council website at 
least 24hrs before the meeting. 
 
To view live paste this link into your browser: 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC7DDSVoAIgTnwgp0Ku8iFLQ 
 
 
Members of the press and public may tweet, blog etc. during the live broadcast, as 
they would be able to during a regular Committee meeting in the Council Offices. 
It is important, however, that Councillors can discuss and take decisions without 
disruption, so the only participants in this virtual meeting will be the Councillors 
concerned and the officers advising the Committee. 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 

LICENSING ACT PANEL  
 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC7DDSVoAIgTnwgp0Ku8iFLQ


Disclosing Pecuniary Interests - What Must You Do? 

 

 (a) You must complete a declaration of your disclosable pecuniary interests, including those of 
your spouse/civil partner (or someone with whom you are living as such) and send it to the 
Monitoring Officer within 28 days of your election or appointment to the Council. 

(b)  When you attend a meeting of the Council, Cabinet, Scrutiny Board, Committee, Sub-
Committee or Joint Committee etc, and a matter arises in which you have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest, unless you have been granted a dispensation, you must: 

 Declare the interest if you have not already registered it 

 Not participate in any discussion or vote 

 Leave the meeting room until the matter has been dealt with 

 Give written notice of any unregistered interest to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of 
the meeting 

(c) If you are the Leader or a Cabinet Portfolio Holder you may not exercise any of your 
delegated powers as a single member in relation to a matter in which you have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or take any other step except to give written notice of any unregistered interest 
to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of your becoming aware of the interest, or arrange for 
another person or body to deal with the matter. 

 

Disclosable Interest 

 

Description 

Employment, office, 
trade, profession or 
vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain by you 
or your partner. 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the Council) 
made or provided within 12 months of your declaration of interests in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your election 
expenses. 

Contracts Any contract between you or your partner (or a firm or body corporate in which you or 
your partner is a partner or a director, or in the securities of which you or your partner 
has a beneficial interest)) and the Council  
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the Council and which gives you 
or your partner a right to occupy the land or receive income. 

Licences Any licence held by you or your partner (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
area of the Council for a month or longer. 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge)— 
(a) the landlord is the Council; and 
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial interest i.e. a firm or 
body corporate in which you or your partner is a partner or a director, or in the securities 
of which you or your partner has a beneficial interest. 

Securities Any beneficial interest held by you or your partner in securities of a body where— 
 
(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of the 
Council; and 
(b) either— 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of 
the total issued share capital of that body; or 
 
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class in which you or your partner has a 
beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
class. 

“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a 
collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets 
Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a 
building society. 



 
  

SOLIHULL METROPOLITAN  
BOROUGH COUNCIL 



 
To: 
Councillors R Grinsell, P Hogarth MBE 
(Chairman), K Thomas and P Thomas 
 

 
NICK PAGE 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
Council House, Manor Square 
Solihull, West Midlands. B91 3QB 
Tel. 0121-704 6000  
 
David Acton 
Tel: 0121 704-6156 
Email: dacton@solihull.gov.uk 
 
Date 8 December 2020 
 

 
LICENSING ACT PANEL 

 
MONDAY 21 DECEMBER 2020 

 
AGENDA 

 
Mayor/Chairman of the meeting to announce: 
 
‘May I remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live via the 

internet.’ 
 

1.  STRAWBERRY BANK HOTEL (Pages 5 - 46) 
To determine the application for a variation to a premises licence made by 
Westbourne Leisure Ltd trading as Strawberry Bank Hotel, 72 Main Road, 
Meriden, Coventry, CV7 7NF 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

Meeting date: 21 December 2020 

 

Report to: Licensing Act Panel 

Subject/report 
title: 

APPLICATION FOR THE VARIATION TO A PREMISES LICENCE  
MADE BY WESTBOURNE LEISURE LTD,TRADING AS 
STRAWBERRY BANK HOTEL, 72 MAIN ROAD, MERIDEN, 
COVENTRY, CV7 7NF. 

Report from: Assistant Director Partnerships & Communities 

Report 
author/lead 
contact officer: 

Naz Pathan 

Licensing Officer  

npathan@solihull.gov.uk 
 

 
Wards affected:  

☐ All Wards | ☐ Bickenhill | ☐ Blythe | ☐ Castle Bromwich | ☐ Chelmsley Wood | 

☐ Dorridge/Hockley Heath | ☐ Elmdon | ☐ Kingshurst/Fordbridge | ☐ Knowle | 

☐ Lyndon | ☐ Meriden | ☒ Olton | ☐ Shirley East | ☐ Shirley South | 

☐ Shirley West | ☐ Silhill | ☐ Smith’s Wood | ☐ St Alphege 

Public/private 
report: 

Public 

       

 

 
1. Purpose of Report 

1.1 To determine the application for a variation to a premises licence made by 
Westbourne Leisure Ltd trading as Strawberry Bank Hotel, 72 Main Road, Meriden, 
Coventry, CV7 7NF.  

2. Decision(s) recommended 

2.1 It is recommended that this application be considered in line with the existing 
legislation and guidance. 

3. Matters for Consideration 

3.1 The premises is a detached building which operates as a hotel and restaurant, along 
with providing facilities for corporate functions and family events. The premises has its 
own car park and rear garden. 

3.2 The premises licence, number SOL/PR/005158 was granted on 24 August 2005, and 
was transferred on 17 March 2014 to the current licence holder, Westbourne Leisure 
Ltd. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



 

 
 

3.3 The applicant is seeking to extend the licensed area of the premises to the outside 
boundary line, in line with current government guidance encouraging the hospitality 
sector to utilise outside areas during the COVID-19 pandemic. The extension of the 
licensed area outside is to allow for outdoor dining and any other functions to take 
place in the car park and rear garden. They wish for all activities and times to remain 
as existing.  The plan identifying  the proposed extension to the area to the boundary 
line and the additional ways in which the applicant intends to promote the licensing 
objectives is attached at Appendix A. 

3.4  The existing licensable activities and times authorised by the licence are detailed at 
Appendix B. 

3.5 The premises is located at 72 Main Road, Meriden, Coventry, CV7 7NF. An aerial 
image of the premises is attached at Appendix C. 

3.6 The Licensing Authority has received a number of relevant representations, all from 
nearby residents and one from the Parish Council. The representations are detailed at 
Appendix D.  For completeness, all attachments have been included, however 
members should ensure they disregard any comments relating to parking, highways 
issues, planning, existing availability of alcohol in the area and anything else that is 
not relevant under one or more of the four licensing objectives. 

3.7 The conditions attached to the existing premises licence are attached at Appendix E.  
The applicant has agreed additional conditions proposed by West Midlands Police and 
are attached at Appendix F. 

3.8 Since July 2018, five complaints have been recorded against the premises, the details 
of which are at Appendix G.  

4. What options have been considered and what is the evidence telling us about 
them? 

4.1 The panel may choose any of the following actions: 

a. Grant the application as applied for. 

b. Grant the application but with modifications such as an amendment to hours 
and/or amendment/addition of conditions. 

c. Refuse the application 

4.2 The decision of the panel must be proportionate and appropriate for the promotion of 
the four licensing objectives, which are: 

 Prevention of crime and disorder 

 Public safety 

 Prevention of public nuisance 

 Protection of children from harm 

Page 6



 

 
 

 

5.  Reasons for recommending preferred option 

4.3 Preferred option for decision of the Licensing Act Panel will be in line with the 
appropriate legislation and guidance. 

5. Implications and Considerations 

5.1 State how the proposals in this report contribute to the priorities in the Council Plan: 

Priority: Contribution: 

Economy: 

1. Revitalising our towns and local 
centres. 

2. UK Central (UKC) and maximising the 
opportunities of HS2. 

3. Increase the supply of housing, 
especially affordable and social 
housing. 

To promote and support responsible 
businesses operating within the night time 
economy. 

Environment: 

4. Enhance Solihull’s natural environment. 
5. Improve Solihull’s air quality. 
6. Reduce Solihull’s net carbon emissions. 

N/A 

People and Communities: 

7. Take action to improve life chances in 
our most disadvantaged communities. 

8. Enable communities to thrive. 
9. Sustainable, quality, affordable 

provision for adults & children with 
complex needs. 

To support residents and businesses to 
work together, ensuring the needs of both 
are effectively balanced. 

5.2 Consultation and Scrutiny: 

5.2.1 All Responsible Authorities were consulted as follows and no representations were 
received: 

Solihull MBC – Childrens Services 

Solihull MBC – Environmental Health 

Solihull MBC – Licensing Authority 

Solihull MBC – Planning 

Solihull MBC – Public Health 

Page 7

https://www.solihull.gov.uk/Portals/0/Ourvisionandpriorities/Council_plan.pdf


 

 
 

Solihull MBC – Trading Standards 

West Midlands Fire Service 

West Midlands Police  

5.2.2 The applicant advertised the application by way of statutory notices at the premises, 
and in a local newspaper, in accordance with the advertising regulations.  The 
Licensing Authority advertised the application on its licence register on the Council 
website.  

5.3 Financial implications: 

5.3.1 The application fee has been paid. 

5.4 Legal implications: 

5.4.1 Members are reminded of the need to have regard to the relevant provisions of the 
European Convention on Human Rights, the Human Right Act 1998 and the Crime 
and Disorder Act 1998. 

5.4.2 Members should also have regard to the Statutory Guidance issued by the Secretary 
under section 182 of the Licensing Act (dated April 2018), as well as the council’s 
Statement of Licensing Policy (published January 2016). 

5.5 Risk implications: 

5.5.1 The applicant and those who have made relevant representations may appeal the 
decision of the Sub-Committee within 21 days of receipt of the decision 

5.6 Equality implications: 

5.6.1 In line with current legislation 

6. List of appendices referred to 

6.1 Appendix A: Plan showing extension to boundary line 

6.2 Appendix B: Existing Premises Licence 

6.3 Appendix C: Aerial view plan 

6.4 Appendix D: Representations received 

6.5 Appendix E: Current attached conditions 

6.6 Appendix F: Agreed conditions 

6.7 Appendix G: Summary of complaints recorded  

7. Background papers used to compile this report 

7.1 N/A 

Page 8



 

 
 

8. List of other relevant documents 

8.1 N/A 

  

Page 9



 

 
 

Appendix A 

 
 
 

Page 10



 

 
 

 

Page 11



 

 
 

 
Appendix B 

  
 
 

Page 12



 

 
 

 
 

 
Appendix C 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



 

 
 

 

Page 14



 

 
 

                           Appendix D 
 
Objection 1 
 
From: XXXX@clara.co.uk  
Sent: 06 November 2020 19:21 
To: Licensing (Public Health, Trading Standards - Solihull MBC)  
Subject: Licensing Act Variation Application ref PREM996/20 

Dear Sir or Madam 

Licensing Act Variation Application ref PREM996/20 - Strawberry Bank Hotel, Main Road, Meriden. 

We write to you, the Public Protection Manager for Licensing, to object to this application by 

Westbourne Leisure Limited to extend the licensed area of the Strawberry Bank Hotel to an outside 

area of the property. We live in the vicinity of the hotel and are "an interested party". 

Our reasons for objecting are:  

1. The hotel's website states that it is set on 2 acres of landscaped gardens and we wonder if the 

application notice is sufficiently conspicuous for a site of this size. 

2. We complained to the Council in the summer about the unacceptably high noise levels coming from 

the gardens of the hotel. The amplified music broadcast on more than one occasion was so loud and 

intrusive that it prevented us from enjoying our garden. We wonder if the hotel, at that time, had a 

licence for serving alcohol and playing loud music outdoors. 

3. There is ample guidance available for owners and landlords of pubs, restaurants and hotels showing 

what are, and what are not, acceptable standards of behaviour for the licensed trade. 

This website 

https://www.hospitalitylaw.co.uk/pubs-bars-restaurants-keep-the-volume-down-on-your-summer-

events/ 

published by Freeths, a firm of legal specialists for the drinks and hospitality industry, advises bluntly: 

 Management should control noise levels – this is not just down to the DJ 
 Don’t play music in the outdoor area 

The website "How to run a pub" 

https://howtorunapub.co.uk/noise-pollution-and-noise-complaints-page-4/ 

states, again very bluntly, that the landlord has a legal duty to protect the public and the staff from 

noise. Loud music may be a statutory nuisance "if it affects a member of the public’s health or 

enjoyment of their land or property eg a neighbour of your pub in their home or garden". 

The behaviour of those in charge of the Strawberry Bank has failed to reach these standards. 

Page 15

mailto:XXXX@clara.co.uk
https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/FESkCZ8VGc7lzP6FzSirt?domain=hospitalitylaw.co.uk/
https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/FESkCZ8VGc7lzP6FzSirt?domain=hospitalitylaw.co.uk/
https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/Nr8GC16rpc638n4iGAW9L?domain=howtorunapub.co.uk/


 

 
 

4. In the summer it took at least one visit to the premises by the police before the nuisance ceased. 

5. Although we live in the vicinity of the hotel, our garden is not next door to the hotel and if we found 

the noise intrusive, it must have been even more unbearable for the new houses immediately adjacent 

to the hotel gardens and for the neighbouring houses in Strawberry Fields. 

6. If this variation is granted, we fear that out garden will become a no-go area whenever music is 

played in the gardens and that we shall probably have to keep the windows shut, even on hot days, to 

keep the noise down to something close to a tolerable level. We wish to enjoy any warm summer's 

afternoons and evenings in our garden; we do not wish to dread them because of the disturbance from 

the Strawberry Bank 

7. A hotel, restaurant and bar such as the Strawberry Bank, should be an amenity to be enjoyed by 

patrons (including those from Meriden) and not be a blight on nearby private homes. 

8. The landlord's past behaviour and attitude towards neighbours does not augur well. 

Yours faithfully, 

C R & P A Marshall 

XXXX, Main Road, Meriden 

 

Objection 2 

 
From: XXXX@btinternet.com  
Sent: 12 November 2020 20:25 
To: Boobyer, Elizabeth (Places Directorate - Solihull MBC) <elboobyer@solihull.gov.uk> 
Subject: License application The Strawberry Bank Hotel Meriden 
 
I wish to lodge my strong objection to the application by the Strawberry Bank Hotel, Meriden 
to expand their licence to their outside space and car park in Meriden 
 
I believe it will cause more Crime and disorder and anti social Behaviour than it does now, a 
Public Nuisance from Noise and Traffic problems to the many residents close by. 
and public safety 
 
I live on Main Road and have drinking glasses smashed on my garden wall, also half filled 
beer glasses again left on my wall 
 
I object to this planning/licensing application for the reasons stated, it a residential area and I 
believe it will cause a lot of stress worry Noise and antisocial behaviour for the many nearby 
residents 
 
Regards 
 
Mrs Carol Stafford, Main Road Meriden 
 

Page 16



 

 
 

Objection 3  

 
From: XXXX@icloud.com>  
Sent: 14 November 2020 10:07 
To: Licensing (Public Health, Trading Standards - Solihull MBC) <licence@solihull.gov.uk> 
Cc: Melley, Charles (Places Directorate - Solihull MBC) <cmelley@solihull.gov.uk> 
Subject: Objection to PREM996/20 
 
Good Morning,  
  
We wish to object to the above application (PREM996/20) at the Strawberry bank Hotel in 
Meriden.  
 
Our reasons are stated below:  
 -excessive noise; this has already been the case all summer since the lock down was lifted, 
my baby daughter was unable to sleep and her room was so hot as we could not have the 
window open, we were kept awake to the early hours of the morning, and after numerous 
complaints to the council the premises was visited by the police to discuss matters 
 
-anti social behaviour; again we have experienced this from the hotel with visitors having 
fights and police being called and excessive noise when they are leaving the premises. 
 
-dangerous driving with cars racing out of the entrance, especially with there being a 
pavement outside. 
 
- visitors hanging around in the street after hours waiting for taxis and making excessive 
noise. 
 
From the above reasons I can only see the noise problems getting worse if this was to be 
approved.  
 
Below I have attached videos from the summer that I previously sent in, of guests who have 
left the hotel, these were taken at midnight which is completely unacceptable.  
 
I hope you will consider our concerns and take them into account when making a decision on 
this.  
 
Kind regards  
Francesca and Robert Peace  
 
XX Main Road Meriden 
 

 
Objection 4 

 
From: Lily Cockrell  
Sent: 13 November 2020 09:04 
To: Boobyer, Elizabeth (Places Directorate - Solihull MBC) ; Licensing (Public Health, 
Trading Standards - Solihull MBC)  
Subject: PREM996/20 

Page 17



 

 
 

 
Good morning,  
 
In regards to the above application (PREM996/20), We wish to object to it being agreed by 
the council.  
 
We live directly next door to The Strawberry Bank and already have no end of problems with 
them and their customers. 
 
Granting them permission to drink outside the premises, including the front carpark, would 
cause more unruly behaviour from customers. Police have already had to go out to the pub 
numerous times this year after fights have broken out.  
Myself, along with many other neighbours and village residents, make regular noise 
complaints against the pub as it is, and allowing further leniency will only make things worse. 
 
I have had glasses and bottles smashed on my driveway, things thrown at my house (in the 
midst of fights), and my children woken many nights by the level of noise and music coming 
from the pub late at night into the early hours of the morning. 
 
My above comments effects all 4 of the valid reasons for objections.  
 
In my opinion, and I know much of the village agrees, The Strawberry Bank need their rules 
tightening and need to be far more courteous of their fellow neighbours and village residents.  
 
There is no way their license requires or should be extending to outdoor areas.  
 
Kind regards,  
 
Lily Cockrell  
 

 
Objection 5 

 
From: Nick Courtney  
Sent: 16 November 2020 12:24 
To: Licensing (Public Health, Trading Standards - Solihull MBC)  
Subject: Ref PRENW99620 variation to licensing application 
 
Dear Sir, 
We would like to object to the variation of the license for the Strawberry Bank hotel to sell 
alcholol to be served outside on the premises. 
We live directly opposite the hotel and do not wish our age restricted residential premises to 
be affected on the following points. 
1,crime and disorder 
This may result in more nuisance noise and antisocial behaviour. Eg the police being called 
to violence and agression by customers. 
2, Public Safety 
Customers displaying violence, increase volume of traffic from customers cars 
3, Prevention of public nuisance 
As stated more noise, violent incidents. 

Page 18



 

 
 

4, 
Protecting children from harm. 
Local chlidren live very close to the premises and an increase in outside activity would be 
detrimental to their safeguarding. 
The police have been called to the premises on several occasions recently due to fights 
overspilling into the carpark. 
We hope that the local authority recognise our concerns and reject the application. 
Yours sincerely 
 
Angela and Michael Courtney 
 

 
 
Objection 6 
Further Objection from CR &PA Marshall 

 
18th November 2020 
 
 
Public Protection Manager – Licensing 
SMBC Central 
Moat Lane 
Solihull B91 2LW 
 
 
Dear Sir or Madam 

Licensing Act Variation Application ref PREM996/20 
Strawberry Bank Hotel, Main Road, Meriden. 

 
Further to our email of 6 November, we write to submit further details of our objection to this 
application to extend the licensed area of the Strawberry Bank Hotel to an outside area of the 
property.  We live in the vicinity of the hotel. 
Our main reason for objecting relates to Section (d) of the application, the prevention of 
public nuisance. 
a)  The present application raises questions.  The hotel has used the outside spaces for 
serving alcohol and playing amplified music in the past, most recently this summer after the 
end of the Covid-19 lockdown.  The noise from this and previous outside events has 
triggered complaints from the hotel’s neighbours. 
b)  Did the hotel, on these occasions, have the appropriate licences to use its outside areas?  
If it did not, how seriously does the management take its obligations to comply with licensing 
laws and how committed is it to preventing public noise nuisance? 
c)  We and other neighbours complained to the Council in the summer because the 
unacceptably loud and intrusive noise coming for hours from the gardens of the hotel 
prevented us from enjoying our gardens.  How loud was the noise?  Well, we could 
distinguish clearly the words of popular songs, we could tell when the music and singer were 
“live” and when the records being played were those of famous recording artists. 
d)  There is ample guidance available for owners and landlords of pubs, restaurants and 
hotels showing what are, and what are not, acceptable standards of behaviour for the 
licensed trade.  This website: 

 
XXXX 

Main Road 
Meriden 

 

Page 19



 

 
 

https://www.hospitalitylaw.co.uk/pubs-bars-restaurants-keep-the-volume-down-on-your-
summer-events/ 
published by Freeths, a firm of legal specialists for the drinks and hospitality industry, advises 
bluntly: 

 Management should control noise levels – this is not just down to the DJ 
 Don’t play music in the outdoor area 

The website "How to run a pub": 
https://howtorunapub.co.uk/noise-pollution-and-noise-complaints-page-4/ 
states, again bluntly, that the landlord has a legal duty to protect the public and the staff from 
noise.  Loud music may be a statutory nuisance "if it affects a member of the public’s health 
or enjoyment of their land or property e.g. a neighbour of your pub in their home or garden". 
 
The behaviour of those in charge of the Strawberry Bank has failed to reach these standards. 
d)  In the summer it took at least one visit to the premises by the police before the nuisance 
ceased. 
e)  The maps at the end of this letter show that our property is circa 260 metres (285 yards) 
in a straight line from the Strawberry Bank gardens.  If we found the noise intrusive, it must 
have been even more unbearable for those living in the eight new houses immediately 
adjacent to the hotel gardens and for those neighbours living in Strawberry Fields (60 
houses).  Neighbours living in Meriden Park Homes (approximately 60 homes) are further 
even further away than we are, and they also complained that they found the noise 
prevented them enjoying their property. 
f)  How will the Premises Licence Holder or any of the staff monitor the noise from the 
outside area so that it does not become a public nuisance?  No details are given and any 
noise monitoring so far has been ineffective. 
g)  “All Licensable activities will cease in the outside areas from 22:00 hrs, Monday to 
Sunday”.  Does this mean that we shall suffer public nuisance noise on any warm summer’s 
afternoon or evening? 
h)  The hotel is set on 2 acres of landscaped gardens - is one application notice sufficient? 
If this variation were to be granted, we fear that gardens in the vicinity would become no-go 
areas whenever music was to be played in the hotel’s gardens and that people would 
probably have to keep the windows shut, even on hot days, to keep the noise down to 
something close to a tolerable level.  We wish to enjoy any warm summer's afternoons and 
evenings in our garden; we do not wish to dread them because of the intrusive noise from 
the Strawberry Bank 
A hotel, restaurant and bar such as the Strawberry Bank, should be an amenity to be 
enjoyed by patrons (including those from Meriden) and not be a blight on nearby private 
homes. 
The landlord's past behaviour and attitude towards neighbours does not augur well. 

Yours faithfully, 

C R & P A Marshall 

 

Cropped section from OS 1:1250 map ref S28sw downloaded from Ordnance Survey 
Opendata.  Site Co-ordinates are: 424225, 281805. 
 

Page 20

https://www.hospitalitylaw.co.uk/pubs-bars-restaurants-keep-the-volume-down-on-your-summer-events/
https://www.hospitalitylaw.co.uk/pubs-bars-restaurants-keep-the-volume-down-on-your-summer-events/
https://howtorunapub.co.uk/noise-pollution-and-noise-complaints-page-4/


 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

Strawberry Fields 
houses 
 

New houses on former Shirleys 
Garage site 
 

Strawberry Fields 
houses 

New houses on former Shirleys 
Garage site 

Distance 
measurement 
courtesy of Google 
Maps 

The 
Grange 

Meriden Park 
Homes 

Page 21



 

 
 

Objection 7 

 
From: XXXX_@live.co.uk 
Sent: 18 November 2020 16:08 
To: Licensing (Public Health, Trading Standards - Solihull MBC) <licence@solihull.gov.uk>; 
Melley, Charles (Places Directorate - Solihull MBC) <cmelley@solihull.gov.uk> 
Subject: Objection to PREM996/20 
 
Good afternoon,  
 
I am writing to state our objection to the above application (PREM996/20) which refers to the 
Strawberry Bank public house/Hotel, Meriden, Coventry.  
 
The reasons for this I will document below -  
 
* Excessive noise - There have been numerous issues at this location throughout the 
summer of 2020 (even though a large part has been spent in lockdown!). This became 
excessive following the lifting of lockdown and the noise levels were that extreme we were 
unable to have our patio doors open and our babies window open whilst he was trying to 
sleep as it was disturbing him. This was during a time that it was incredibly hot so not ideal.  
There was a point on one Sunday afternoon we had to leave the house as the volume of the 
music was so loud, it has often felt like we were living next to a nightclub not a pub! Whilst 
sitting in our own garden and trying to play our own music there was just no point as the level 
of the music from the venue was that loud it just drowned anything else out!!  
 
Myself and other residents made numerous  complaints about this and the premises was 
visited by the licensing officer and Police and the licensee stated it would stop as there were 
no further live music events on (not because they had been advised about the noise and 
wanted to stop the trouble for the neighbours!!)  
 
The noise from the smoking shelter is also very noticeable as everyone appears to gather 
here and you can hear the conversations whilst in our house even with the windows slightly 
open. The smell is also vile once they are all gathered smoking.  
 
ASB - There are often groups gathered once the location is closed and are waiting for taxis 
and lifts. This had led to fighting and the police being called previously. We live in a village, 
not a city centre or town centre!  
 
Following the complaints over the summer it was evident that the licensee had no care or 
respect for us as residents as nothing changed and the music levels continued to be 
excessive.  
We completely understand that following recent changes during Covid, outside areas are 
considered safer and businesses need to make money again but we are extremely 
concerned that allowing this application will mean more people drinking and being loud 
outside the premises and the surrounding areas when they have a big enough garden to 
cater outside already. From witnessing what the location was like in the summer following 
lockdown it seemed that the licensee wanted this to be more like a nightclub/ town pub rather 
than a village pub which it in fact is!! 
 

Page 22



 

 
 

We wholly object to this application and hope that our concerns are considered prior to any 
decision being made.  
 
Regards,  
 
Katy Roberts & Sam Turland 
 

 
Objection 8 

 
From: XXXX@hotmail.com>  
Sent: 18 November 2020 21:15 
To: Licensing (Public Health, Trading Standards - Solihull MBC) <licence@solihull.gov.uk> 
Subject: Strawberry Bank Hotel & Restaurant 
 
18th November 2020 
 
Good morning, 
 
I understand that The Strawberry Bank Hotel have applied for a licence to have outside bar 
and entertainment.? 
The venue holds events throughtout the year, weddings, wakes, parties for various 
occasions etc. They often spill out into the car park particularly after the bar has closed 
resulting in very loud shouting and bad language.  
 
Whilst I undertsand these are events where people are consuming a lot of alcohol and 
enjoying themselves, the hotel makes no attempt to quieten these people most occur 
between midnight and 1.00 am. I have called several times over the last few years, I have 
been a resident here for 25 years and the last 8-10 years have been difficult. I live at the side 
of the main car park and the Summer months are particularly difficult as I am unable to open 
my bedrooom window due to the noise. 
My objections to them being granted a licence are:- 
1. Many silver capsules are often found scattered in the car park or below the hedges 
and along the grass verge, I have since found out these are drugs. As these are around the 
hotel car park I can only assume this is where their tranactions take place 
2. The area is not safe to walk around after 11.00 as I can hear fights breaking out and 
the language is volatile, this has happened on many occasions and the police attended the 
scene not so long ago. I no longer drink or eat at the Bull's Head after 10.00 pm as I have to 
walk past Strawberry Bank. 
3. Srawberry Bank, have a large garden at the rear for outside drinking and a bar area in 
the restaurant along with another area to the side of the restaurant at the front, again for 
drinking and smoking. Myself and several neighbours have been into reception to speak to 
the manager on a few occasions but we always get an assistant who is going to pass the 
message on. We leave our contact details and he never gets back to us. This shows a lack 
of care and consideration to the residents of Meriden. Another bar is only going to cause 
more of a nuisance. We are a village and the amount of traffic up and down Main Road has 
escalated, I dont believe the car park can cater for any more cars particularly when they have 
a function on and some park in Strawberry Fields. 
 

Page 23



 

 
 

4. The fact drugs are being used in this vicinity, the extent I can only guess out due to the 
number of silver phials / canisters I have seen around. If a young child happens upon these 
who knows what can happen. I have seen suspicious characters loitering around but I am not 
prepared to question them. The staff do not control the behaviour of their patrons and do 
nothing when you phone and ask them to please ask the people outside in the car park to 
make less noise due to the late hour ( after midnight). I want people to enjoy themselves but 
not when it becomes out of hand. 
I have never witnessed loitish behaviour outside thr Manor Hotel or the Bulls Head in all the 
years I have lived here. I can only see the problems for the village getting worse. 
 
Do they really need another drinking area?! 
 
Kind regards 
 
Margaret Randle 
X Strawberry Fields, Meriden 
 

 
Objection 9 

 
From: XXXX@hotmail.com>  
Sent: 18 November 2020 21:11 
To: Licensing (Public Health, Trading Standards - Solihull MBC) <licence@solihull.gov.uk> 
Subject: Objection to PREM996/20 by Westbourne Leisure to Extend licensed area to 
outside area. 
 
Dear Sirs, 
 
I live in Strawberry Fields in one of the houses that backs directly on to the car park of the 
Strawberry Bank Hotel. I have seen the proposed area for outside events and while I 
understand the impact of COVID-19 and the benefits of outside dining and drinking, I believe 
the potential use of this part of their land for such a purpose to be wrong for the following 
reasons: 
1. They already have an extensive beer garden/seating area to the rear of the Hotel, 
which can easily be modified to accommodate more people in a COVID secure manner. 
2. The application makes reference to COVID advice, but there is no time limit on the 
length of the licence. I believe any applications of this nature, should have the licences 
reviewed once the pandemic has subsided to determine if Government advice still holds. If 
not, then the licence should be terminated at that time. 
3. There is already a degree of late night noise from the car park when people are 
leaving the hotel. To hold events there, particularly up until 23.00 will exacerbate this issue. I 
cannot see how noise can be mitigated and would not trust that any measures implemented 
would be maintained as the owners cannot even maintain the current dividing hedge. This is 
not just far too tall, but due to incorrect trimming has now created bare patches where both 
light and sound penetrate more easily. We can now see through the hedge towards the hotel 
in places due to this. 
4. We have already had to collect bottles and cans thrown over the hedge into our 
garden. Fortunately none of the bottles have broken so far, otherwise there would be bits of 
glass in my grass where my family often walk with bare feet.  

Page 24



 

 
 

I believe the application, if granted, will lead to a serious reduction in the enjoyment of my 
property, in particular being able to sit in my back garden in the evening. I therefore ask that 
the application be rejected, certainly for the part that covers the car park that is next to the 
Strawberry Fields housing. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
Jon Wadley 
 

 
Objection 10 

 
From: XXXX@btinternet.com   
Sent: 23 November 2020 10:08 
To: Licensing (Public Health, Trading Standards - Solihull MBC) <licence@solihull.gov.uk> 
Subject: Strawberry Bank.application for licensing 
 
We wish to object on the above application, we live on a retirement complex approx. A 
quarter of a mile,or one field away from the rear of the hotel gardens. In October 2018, the 
hotel started music in the garden,the noise increased greatly, and we then lodged a 
complaint with the Council. On Sunday,6th September 2020 the noise became unbearable, 
despite complaining to the manager at the hotel, he just allowed the music to be even 
louder,he is very difficult to communicate with, as his attitude is that I hold a licence for music 
(outdoors) and if that does not agree with the neighbours, they must put up with it. He has 
shown no consideration for elderly neighbours, and does not care about the upset he may 
cause them. The problem is the volume of music, the outside drinking which leads to 
arguments smashed glasses on the pavements (which never gets cleaned up) The Police 
were called on 6th September, with relation to several problems,and the noise then ceased, 
surely the hotel have a legal obligation to ensure that all these problems are addressed. Our 
question to you is, does the owner of the hotel realise the behaviour of the manager, and if 
so, why are they not dealing with him, or at least meeting with neighbours, to sort out the 
many problems that do exist at their property. THANK YOU VERY MUCH. 
 
yOURS FAITHFULLY  
L AN D.HARBAGE. 
 

 
Objection 11 - Further Objection from Carol Stafford 
 

From: XXXX@btinternet.com 
To: cmelley@solihull.gov.uk 
Sent: Monday, 23 Nov, 2020 At 18:04 
Subject: Strawberry Bank Hotel Meriden Licence application 
fao Mr Charles Melly 
 
further to my objections to the above application, I would like to reiterate my Objections 
having seen the planning application and that it covers the whole of the site on the 
Strawberry Bank.  
 

Page 25



 

 
 

Meriden in a Village the Strawberry Bank is surrounded by residential properties that would 
be greatly affected by Noise, unsociable behaviour and Traffic problems. my understanding 
is they have previously broken licencing laws when they held an outside music event without 
the appropriate licence.  
previously. 
 
I believe this application if approved would be detrimental to the village and the neighbouring 
residential properties. 
 
Regards Mrs Carol Stafford 
Meriden 
 

 
Objection 12 

 
From: XXXX@yahoo.co.uk  
Sent: 23 November 2020 23:40 
To: Licensing (Public Health, Trading Standards - Solihull MBC) <licence@solihull.gov.uk> 
Subject: Re Application number PREM996/20 - objection 
 
Re Application number PREM996/20 
 
Extend licensed area to outside area 
 
Westbourne Leisure Limited 
 
Strawberry Bank Hotel 
72 Main Road 
Meriden 
Coventry 
CV7 7NF 
 
Extend licensed area to outside area.  
 
From: Lewis Edwards 
X Strawberry Fields, 
Meriden, 
Coventry 
 
Dear team, 
 
I am writing to strongly object to this application on the following grounds: 
 
1). Crime and disorder - The Strawberry Bank is a known spot for drug dealing - pick ups on 
the car park are a regular site and the car park is also a hangout for people taking nitrous 
oxide - adding additional alcohol and congregation space to the mix is only going to increase 
the problem and the added by-product of drug / drunk driving. In the summer of 2020, there 
was also a serious fight which broke out on the car park involving up to 40 individuals with 
the police a police dog unit and an ambulance in attendance. 

Page 26



 

 
 

Extending the licence for more outdoor consumption will only increase instances like this. 
This premises already has ample seated space at the rear for outdoor alcohol consumption. 
 
2). Public safety - as per the previous paragraph these instances pose a risk to public safety, 
particularly when altercations spill put onto the street. In addition to this, turning car park 
space into additional space for outdoor alcohol consumption is going to reduce the amount of 
car parking space available. This will inevitably result in cars parking on a road which is a 
double yellow line zone and parking outside homes which will lead to more antisocial 
behaviour as residents potentially clash with customers. 
 
3). Prevention of public nuisance - as the previous paragraphs illustrate, the proposal has the 
potential for significant public nuisance in the form of antisocial behaviour and violence. 
Noise is a specific nuisance that would be a likely result should this application be approved. 
In the summer of 2020, the Strawberry Bank held music events which could be heard from 
almost a mile away which attracted a number of complaints (to the premises, some to the 
council and some to the police) and caused a lot of animosity amongst residents and the 
potential for more eviolence. All of this was in the middle of a pandemic situation with 
numbers that were supposed to be restricted and without event licences. If the premises 
conducts itself like this without permission and in adverse circumstances, it is highly likely 
that it would not abide by any guidelines within an official licence to have additional outdoor 
space for the provision of alcohol consumption. It is also likely that there would be an 
increase in disorder based on noise as customers when drinking and leaving the premises in 
an intoxicated state would clash with residents. 
 
4). For the reasons of increased crime and disorder and also of the by-products of all of 
points 1-3 above, an extension of the ability for the Strawberry Bank to serve alcohol for 
consumption outside would have the potential to cause harm to children. 
 
This application is also inappropriate as it is in a quiet residential family area and would open 
the door for some very ugly scenes and misery for neighbours. I would ask the licensing 
authority to bear this in mind, and the fact that the Strawberry Bank has little regard for its 
neighbours and has been holding noisy outdoor events without a licence which have been a 
public nuisance and disorderly.  
 
I am somewhat taken aback by previous permission given for an event licence for 250 
people with alcohol in a Tier 2 pandemic situation on 5 November 2020. I would urge the 
licensing authority to take the lives and safety of residents into account when looking at the 
case for Extending the licensed area to outside, and robustly reject it. 
 
Kind regards, 
 
Lewis Edwards 
X Strawberry Fields, 
Meriden, 
Coventry 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



 

 
 

Objection 13 

 
From: XXXX@gmail.com 
Sent: 23 November 2020 19:52 
To: Melley, Charles (Places Directorate - Solihull MBC) <cmelley@solihull.gov.uk>; 
Licensing (Public Health, Trading Standards - Solihull MBC) <licence@solihull.gov.uk> 
Subject: Reference PREM996/20 
 
Good evening,  
 
I recently became aware of an application to alter the licence of the neighbouring pub 
(Strawberry Bank Hotel & Restaurant, SOL/PR/005158) to both extend the hours of the 
licence and allow consumption anywhere on the premises.  
The request to increase the hours of operation is greatly concerning as I live against the 
eastern boundary of the pub and we have had numerous issues for the short periods of time 
which the pub has been allowed to open this year.  
One of the more recent / severe issues was on the 22nd of August this year, at around 22:30 
pretty much a full scale fight broke out between a large portion of the customers resulting in 
police & ambulances arriving in bulk at around 23:05.  
I also believe several noise complaints have been made over recent months from 
conversations with other residents in the local area and there have been several other 
incidents in between, I have come close myself to submitting complaints but have yet to do 
so.  
 
I have a 3 year old son who's bedroom is on that side of my property and a 1 year old 
daughter to the rear, this has already caused them enough distress not to mention the rest of 
my family and neighbouring properties, some of them also with young children / babies.  
Events include having objects thrown at the house, glasses / waste disposed of within the 
hedgerow at the front of my house / driveway and myself, wife and children woken up by 
excessive noise caused by drunk / disorderly customers who "linger" around post-closing.  
 
Despite the current licencing restrictions, this hasn't stopped these issues from breaking out 
from the confines of the building into the car park / smoking shelter already, I strongly believe 
this will only add to what is becoming an increasingly concerning problem.  
With regards to the 2:00AM hours this seems like an absolutely ludicrous request, this is a 
small & relatively quiet village and the noise already generated at the existing hours is 
enough to prompt several noise complaints, let alone what could happen if extended further.  
I don't want to subject my family to this, and I wouldn't wish it upon anyone elses either. I 
appreciate that everyone is entitled to have a drink and a good time, but there has to be a 
reasonable time to do so and 2:00AM in a small village is grossly unacceptable.  
 
I object / oppose any proposals beyond the current limitations, if anything the current limits 
should be reviewed in the opposite effect to avoid inflicting nuisance onto the local area.  
--  
Kind regards, 
Kenny Cockrell  
Tel - XXXX 
 

 
 

Page 28



 

 
 

Objection 14 

 
From: XXXX@yahoo.co.uk  
Sent: 24 November 2020 12:57 
To: Licensing (Public Health, Trading Standards - Solihull MBC) <licence@solihull.gov.uk> 
Subject: Strawberry Bank Hotel PREM996/20 Your Ref: MAU 0005158 
 
John Edwards 
‘XXXX’ Berkswell rd 
Meriden 
 
This is an objection to the application to vary the licence, extending the licensed area of the 
premises to the car parks and garden area. 
 
The Strawberry Bank Is situated on the busy main road through Meriden, you will see from 
the site map they have submitted that the car park is adjacent on either side to residential 
properties, in all of these cases the car park is in extremely close proximity to the gardens 
and houses. In addition there are residential properties directly opposite all of which would be 
adversely affected by the proposed change to the licence. 
 
The road outside and opposite has double yellow lines, if car park is used for drinking and 
dining there are no facilities for parking. 
 
The garden area is already used for drinking and dining, and there is seating and tables 
provided to facilitate this, so it’s difficult to understand why this area is included in the 
application as a variation to the existing licence. 
 
In the past the licensee has shown no regard at all to the feelings of local residents when 
they have complained about noise from these premises, in fact when I complained about 
noise from an outside event with amplified music from a live band, I was told by a member of 
staff that they had had licence and were allowed to play music during the hours 12 00 - 22 30 
( this was a Sunday). And that nobody else had complained, this was completely untrue as 
their licence is for indoor music only and there had been numerous complaints about the 
noise both to them and your department and the police. 
 
The reference in their application to holding community events on the car park seems be a 
bit cynical, I have lived here for over forty years and there has never been any event held 
there that could be described as a community event.  
 
The position on the main road, and the close proximity to nearby residential properties make 
this variation to the licence totally unsuitable. 
 
There are other licensed premises in Meriden and if granted this could open the floodgates 
for them to have drinking and eating on their car parks. 
 
Although they have mentioned Covid restrictions as part of the application, this will be a 
permanent change to the licence and I believe this is being used as a convenient moment to 
apply for this variation. 
 
 

Page 29



 

 
 

Crime and disorder 
There have been a number of incidents at these premises involving rowdy and drunken 
behaviour, as a result of one incident this Summer the police attended a major brawl 
involving up to 40 people fighting on the front car park. This will be more difficult to control. 
The lack of parking if the car park is not available, will inevitably lead to illegal parking, no 
doubt in front of residents homes, this could lead to friction and further problems. 
 
Public Safety 
The close proximity to the busy main road and footpath with people drinking could be a 
hazard and danger to pedestrians and traffic. Particularly if customers decide to park on 
double yellow lines, at the moment there is no one enforcing these restrictions. 
 
Prevention of Public Nuisance  
This variation will lead to noise nuisance, light pollution, and the effects of drunken and 
yobish behaviour on neighbouring residents, and the general public. This place is already 
causing problems with noise and rowdy behaviour when people leave, and it’s impossible to 
mitigate or control this on the car park with the staff inside. Outside music in premises such 
as this cannot be controlled to a degree that would be acceptable to residents, this is in a 
semi rural environment totally unsuitable for what is being proposed here. 
 

This photo is sent to support my objection to the application by Strawberry Bank. 

Page 30



 

 
 

This shows the extensive area of seating already in use in the garden area of the premises. 
Both for eating and drinks.Why have they put in an application to use this when it’s already in 
use? 
 
John Edward 
 

 
Objection 15 

 
From: Robert wilkins  
Sent: Monday, November 23, 2020, 12:15 PM 
To: licensing@solihull.gov.uk 
Subject: Planning Application PREM996/20 
 

Page 31



 

 
 

Dear Sir/Madam 
I wish to raise an objection to the Licensing Act Variation Application numbered 
PREM996/20. 
I represent the Meriden Park Residents Association. 
Our residents are mostly quite elderly and they live on the Estate to enjoy The peace and 
quiet of the area that is Meriden Park. 
The site owners have a noise level rule that disturbances are not allowed after 10.00pm. 
 
The residents are concerned that the licence will allow loud live music and other events to 
take place particularly till late at night. 
Some of our residents live approximately 300 yards from the hotel and have heard music 
from there in the past on the odd occasion. If a licence were granted it would probably be a 
regular event. This would cause serious disruption of the ambience on the site. 
 
Many thanks 
 
Robert Wilkins MPRA Secretary 
 

 
Objection 16 (Meriden Parish Council) 
 
From: Cllr Marie Woollard <marie.woollard@meridenparishcouncil.org.uk>  
Sent: 26 November 2020 11:56 
To: Licensing (Public Health, Trading Standards - Solihull MBC) <licence@solihull.gov.uk> 
Subject: License variation application PREM996/20 The Strawberry Bank Hotel 

 

Public Protection Manager - Licensing 
SMBC Central 
Moat Lane 
Solihull 
B91 2LW 
 
Solihull Licensing Team, Solihull Borough Council 
 
Re: License variation application PREM996/20 The Strawberry Bank Hotel 
 
Meriden Parish Council OBJECTS to this license variation application and details of the 
objections are listed below against the licensing objections: 
 
Prevention of crime and disorder 
 
The Parish Council has received emails regarding complaints of fights which have taken 
place at the establishment, the recent one being 22nd september, where The Parish Council 
have been informed that 20 members of the public were embroiled in a fight which led to 
three police cars, police dog unit and an ambulance having to attend the hotel.  
 
While we applaud The Strawberry Bank for installing a fit for purpose cctv system, providing 
training for staff and and records to be kept, this is not a preventative measure. Additional 
licensable area has been applied for, for the sole purpose of increasing sales of alcohol. Cctv 
is only useful for evidential purposes only and cctv is.  

Page 32



 

 
 

Increased sale of alcohol to increased volume of people who are drinking outside 
unsupervised can only lead to a higher risk of affray. CCTV at the local co op has not 
prevented a knife crime robbery at the co op for example.  
 
Public safety 
 
As the license variation document states, The Strawberry Bank would be able to use the 
whole of the boundary area to hold events, specifically mentioned, the car park to hold 
community events.  
 
Whilst The Parish Council supports business’s adapting due to COVID-19, this must not be 
in detriment to public safety. Meriden itself has very limited car parking spaces and has 
complaints regarding parking around the village, without any establishment operating events 
on precious car park space.  
 
A recent planning application for an extension by The Strawberry Bank was recently objected 
to by Solihull Highways for a lack of increased car parking facilities for the increased 30 
bedroom extension. (PL/2020/01407/PPFL) The complete removal of the car park at The 
Strawberry Bank for the purpose of a community event will only lead to increased on-street 
parking, potentially to the detriment of public highway safety, the operation of the local 
highway network and increasing frustrations of villagers and neighbours.  
In addition, Meriden Parish Council has been forced to fund a traffic enforcement officer to 
enforce traffic regulation orders (TRO’s) around the village to try and improve the flow of 
traffic and mitigate any parking which falls foul of TRO’s. With the newly extended double 
yellow line restrictions that have been placed around the village and increasing housing 
developments that put extra strain on the road traffic network around the village, any 
reduction in car parking will naturally have a detrimental effect to public safety and other 
highway users. 
 
Prevention of public nuisance 
 
There have been several complaints made to the Parish Clerk and Cllr Allsopp regarding 
high levels of noise which has affected residents. Specifically weekend 29th August where 
large outdoor speakers were erected outside, in the beer garden. The noise started from 
lunch time and continued into the evening. In addition, three weeks prior the hotel started 
playing loud music outdoors.  
 
There was a complaint made, number 141445 and dealt with by Diana Sheasby. 
 
Anne Bettison also had a complaint of a similar nature, in which Liz Boobyer visited the 
premises on 13th August after receiving several complaints regarding noise. A discussion 
was had with the Duty Manager regarding the complaints and recommendations and 
measures should be implemented to reduce the noise level experienced by local residents.  
 
Following a visit from PC Prescott and Dee Dialpuri from West Midlands Police, Mr Nick 
Windsor admitted noise had emanated from a live band they had for the first time and a lot of 
bass had been generated from the drums. Mr Nick Windsor stated they will no longer be 
having any live bands. He also advised that although they have a late notice, any music that 
is played ceases at 8pm.  
 

Page 33



 

 
 

The Parish Council has had sight of a nuisance log for noise complaints which a resident had 
filled in , dated 1st September, in which it details nuisance from noise on 29th August and 
30th August described as “ excessive loud noise, live music” which affected the whole 
property on both occasions, and they couldn’t relax in their own home without the noise 
interfering and disrupting their lives. The establishment was approached by the resident to 
complain whist the noise was on going only to be told they couldn’t turn the noise down due 
to it being a ticketed event. 
 
The proposed licensed boundary area is within feet of residential properties so persistent 
noise, smoke fumes will be a public nuisance.  
 
Protection of children from harm 
 
Children live in the properties close by and would hear swearing, have inhalation of cigarette 
smoke and see potential alcohol induced behaviours. 
 
Increased traffic into and exiting the site could endanger pedestrians on the way to the park 
as this is a walking route from Leys Lane estate and the other residential properties.  
 
Parking spaces would be non existent when events would be taking place on the car park, 
increasing road parking and increasing children's risk of road traffic accidents.  
 
 
Councillor M Woollard  
 

 
Objection 17 
 
From: ANGELA O'NEILL <XXXX@icloud.com>  
Sent: 26 November 2020 11:01 
To: Licensing (Public Health, Trading Standards - Solihull MBC) <licence@solihull.gov.uk> 
Subject: Objection to Application PREM996/20 Variation in respect of The Strawberry Bank Hotel 72 Main 
Road Meriden CV7 7NF 

 

Angela O’Neill, XXXX, Berkswell Road, Meriden 
 
I wish to object to the above application to Vary the licence at The Strawberry Bank Hotel for 
the following reasons: 
 
Prevention of Public nuisance 
 
The location of The Strawberry Bank Hotel has residential properties directly adjacent to it 
and opposite it. It is also located in the Heart of a very small village of Meriden…on the busy 
Main Road..leading through the village. 
The variation would inevitably lead to problems with people in these areas who become 
drunk and become loud and cause situations where neighbours/residents living close to 
these premises would adversely be affected…and there may then be situations which would 
lead to Police intervention to deal with disorder problems. 
 

Page 34



 

 
 

Also if these premises were allowed use of their car park areas and outside areas to play 
loud music the noise pollution for almost every resident/and their young families in the village 
would be unbearable. 
There is a private housing estate directly adjacent to the premises on one side and also a 
small development of brand new houses adjacent to these premises on the other side. 
This variation would also lead to light pollution. 
The road outside of these premises has double Yellow Lines and if the car park areas were 
sued for events and consumption of alcohol there would be no facility for car parking. 
 
Crime and Disorder 
 
There have been a number of incidents at these premises involving rowdy and drunken 
behaviour previously.As a result one incident this summer the Police attended a major brawl 
involving up to 40 people fighting on the front car park.This will be more difficult to control. 
If the outside car parks and garden areas were granted use for events and consumption of 
alcohol these situations would only be increased again causing severe problems for local 
residents and their families. 
Also if the car park area is used for events there would be a problem for attendees to park 
their vehicles…which would lead to illegal parking in the village close to this location…in front 
of residents homes..which could lead to friction and further problems. 
 
Public Safety 
 
The close proximity to Main Road Meriden which is a very busy road..and also the footpath 
outside these premises could be a hazard and danger to pedestrians and traffic. 
Particularly if customers decide to park on double yellow lines…at the moment there is no-
one enforcing these restrictions. 
Also if there was a large disorder situation at this location this could spill out onto the 
pavement and an innocent member of the public walking past may be at risk of being 
harmed/injured. 
If we are concerned for public safety the consumption of alcohol should be confined to the 
inside of the premises only. 
 
I would also add that if this application were to go ahead…this would give a Green light to 
other Licensed Premises in the Village. 
 
The position on the main road and the close proximity to nearby residential properties make 
this variation to the licence totally unsuitable. 
There are many residents rear gardens which back onto or are adjacent to the car park at 
these premises which makes this application totally unsuitable. 
 
Although they have mentioned COVID restrictions as part of the application this would be a 
permanent change to the licence which is unacceptable. 
 
 
Angela O'Neill 

Page 35

https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/LiBDCx6vzcL0m3QIvnnUU?domain=previously.as


 

 
 

Objection 18

 
 

Page 36



 

 
 

Objection 19 

 

Page 37



 

 
 

 

Page 38



 

 
 

     Appendix E 

 

Page 39



 

 
 

 

Page 40



 

 
 

 

Page 41



 

 
 

 

Page 42



 

 
 

     

Page 43



 

 
 

         Appendix F 

From: Carl Moore <XXXXXXXXXXX.co.uk>  
Sent: 23 November 2020 14:21 
To: Public Protection (Public Health, Environmental Health - Solihull MBC) <pprotection@solihull.gov.uk>; 
SH_Partnerships@west-midlands.pnn.police.uk 
Cc: Pathan, Naz (Places Directorate - Solihull MBC) <npathan@solihull.gov.uk> 
Subject: Conditions agreed re Application to vary premises License for Strawberry Bank. 

 
Dear Sir/Madam,  
In relation to the below proposed conditions. My client agrees to them being placed on the premises 
license in relation to the variation.  
1. CCTV covering the interior and exterior of the premises (including any outside seating area 
/smoking shelter) will be installed and shall be kept operational at all times the premises are 
open to the public.  

 It shall be capable of taking a head and shoulders shot of persons entering the 
premises, of recording images to an evidential standard in any light and be capable of 
storing images for a minimum of 31 days.  

 All staff who may work front of house shall be trained to operate the CCTV system and 
download images.  

 At least one member of staff trained to operate the CCTV system and download images 
shall be on duty at all times the premises are open to the public. Footage shall be 
shown to the police and screenshots provided to them on request. Copies of 
downloaded images shall be provided to the police on a USB stick, CD or other 
acceptable means as soon as possible and in any case within 24 hours of the request.  

2. An incident book shall be kept at the premises, and made available to the police or authorised 
council officers, which will record the following:  

 All crimes reported,  

 Lost property,  

 All ejections of customers,  

 Any complaints received,  

 Any incidents of disorder,  

 Any seizure of drugs or offensive weapons,  

 Any faults in the CCTV,  

 Any refusal in the sale of alcohol,  

 Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.  

 All perimeter checks and toilet checks including any drug swab results either conducted by 
staff, police or responsible authority.  

In relation to noise. My client agrees to have the following condition on the license.  

 
3. The licence holder (or his/her nominees) shall conduct regular assessments of the noise 
coming from the premises on every occasion the premises are used for regulated 
entertainment and shall take steps to reduce the level of noise where it is likely to cause 
disturbance to local residents.  
 
Regards  
 
Carl  

 

Page 44



 

 
 

Appendix G 

COMPLAINTS HISTORY: The Strawberry Bank Hotel 
 

09/07/2018 - SRU – 147067 
Anonymous complaint received alleging noise from live music from DJ’s from 16:00 hours 
onwards. Officer unable to assess level of disturbance as no specific dates, times and 
address provided. 
 
13/11/2018 – SRU 148532 
Complaint form a resident. Alleged noise of loud music from a party that continued until 
23:20 hours. The resident did contact the hotel and spoke to a staff member to complain and 
was advised that they would bring it to the attention of the Manager. The resident also 
alleged that they found the Manager of the Hotel very obnoxious, a rude person to deal with 
and showed no consideration to neighbours. A visit was planned to the premises but did not 
go ahead as the resident reported no further problems. 
 
03/08/2020 - SRU 155000 

Five complaints received from residents. Allegations of loud music on 31/07/20, lots of 
customers in the smoking shelter and out in the carpark past closing time, causing 
disturbance to residents.  A Licensing Officer visited the premises on 13th August 2020 and 
spoke to one of the Duty Managers to discuss the complaints that had been made and 
recommended that measures are implemented to reduce the noise nuisance experienced by 
local residents, which the manager took on board.  The Officer also contacted the residents 
and supplied ‘noise event log sheets’ which they were requested to complete for the next 21 
days and then return so that if necessary, the matter can be referred to colleagues in 
Environmental Crime if there was evidence that the noise may amount to a statutory 
nuisance, however none were received. 

04/09/2020 – SRU 155378 

Complaint received from a Councillor. The Councillor had received a number of complaints 
regarding the noise coming from the Strawberry Bank Hotel Meriden, week-ending 29th 
August 2020, starting from lunch time into the evening. The allegation was that there was a 
large number of people gathered outside in the beer garden of the Hotel with large speakers 
erected outside. Following the complaint, a joint visit was carried out on 04/09/20 with West 
Midlands Police and met up with the Manger, Nicholas Windsor. A full Covid-19 risk 
assessment was carried out and the premises were found to be in order and fully compliant. 

The recent noise complaints were discussed with Mr Windsor, who admitted the noise had 
emanated from a live band they had for the first time and a lot of bass had been generated 
from the drums. Mr Windsor has stated they will no longer be having any live bands.  He also 
advised that although they have a late licence, any music that is played ceases at 8pm. Mr 
Windsor also advised that he carries out and records sound decibel readings and has 
engaged the services of a noise expert for further advice and guidance on how to further 
reduce the levels of noise. 

Mr Windsor was advised to implement measures to reduce the noise nuisance experienced 
by local residents. Mr Windsor was also encouraged to have regular dialogue with the 
residents, by inviting them over to discuss their concerns, and to contact them to notify them 
of any upcoming events and provide contact details so that if there was a problem he can be 

Page 45



 

 
 

contacted with a view to taking immediate action.  The Officer supplied the Councillor with 
‘noise event log sheets’ to pass onto the residents affected by the noise from the Hotel. The 
Councillor was also advised that under the Licensing Act 2003, any person may call for a 
review of a premises licence if there is evidence that one or more of the licensing objectives 
are being undermined. 

07/09/2020 – SRU 155378 

A complaint was received from a resident about noise from the Hotel on the same day as the 
previous complaint. The complainant was advised of the joint visit carried out by Licensing 
and West Midlands Police on 04/09/2020 and sent and supplied with ‘noise event log sheets’ 
to complete and return so that if necessary the matter can be referred to colleagues in 
Environmental Crime if there was evidence that the noise may amount to a statutory 
nuisance. 

Page 46


	Agenda
	1 Strawberry Bank Hotel

